

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

BID OPPORTUNITY

BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 432-2007

MECHANICAL COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTES FROM APARTMENTS AND SMALL COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS IN THE SOUTH WEST AREA OF THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART A - BID SUBMISSION	
Form A: Bid Form B: Prices Form G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond Form G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Und	1 4 5 dertaking 7
PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES	
B1. Contract Title B2. Submission Deadline B3. Enquiries B4. Addenda B5. Substitutes B6. Bid Submission B7. Bid B8. Prices B9. Qualification B10. Bid Security B11. Opening of Bids and Release of Information B12. Irrevocable Bid B13. Withdrawal of Bids B14. Evaluation of Bids B15. Award of Contract	1 1 1 1 2 3 3 4 4 4 5 6 6 6
PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS	
C0. General Conditions	1
PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS	
General D1. General Conditions D2. Scope of Work D3. Contract Administrator D4. Contractor's Supervisor	1 1 1 1
Submissions D5. Authority to Carry on Business D6. Insurance D7. Performance Security	2 2 2 2
Schedule of Work D8. Commencement	3
Control of Work D9. Prime Contractor – The Workplace Safety and Honorom Safety	ealth Act (Manitoba) 3
Measurement and Payment D11. Invoices D12. Payment D13. Payment Schedule D14. Annual review – Inflationary adjustment	4 4 4 4
Warranty D15. Warranty	4
Form H1: Performance Bond Form H2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit	5 7

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

General	
E1. Applicable Specifications and Drawings	1
E2. Contract Quantities	1
E3. Schedule of Collection Routes and Days of Collection	2
E4. Equipment	3
E5. Inspection	4
E6. Communications	4
E7. Service Standards	4
E8. Dismissal of Employees	5
E9. Work Performance and Equipment Breakdown	6
E10. Impassable Alleys and/or Streets	6
E11. Dealing with Improperly StoreD/Placed Solid Waste Containers	7
E12. Damage or Misuse of Solid Waste Containers	7
E13. Garbage Spillage	8
E14. Dead Animals	8
E15. Bulky Wastes	8
E16. Solid Waste By-Law – Term Interpretations	8
E17. Discretionary Authority Under The Solid Waste By-Law	9
E18. Solid Waste Disposal Site	9
E19. Disposal Charges	9
E20. Metric Measurements	9
Appendix A – List, Type and Frequency of Pickup	1
Appendix B – Solid Waste By-Law	1
Appendix C – Map of Collection Area	1

PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES

B1. CONTRACT TITLE

B1.1 MECHANICAL COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTES FROM APARTMENTS AND SMALL COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS IN THE SOUTH WEST AREA OF THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

B2. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B2.1 The Submission Deadline is 12:00 noon Winnipeg time, July 18, 2007.
- B2.2 Bids determined by the Manager of Materials to have been received later than the Submission Deadline will not be accepted and will be returned upon request.
- B2.3 The Contract Administrator or the Manager of Materials may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B2.1.

B3. ENQUIRIES

- B3.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Contract Administrator identified in D3.1.
- B3.2 If the Bidder finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder shall promptly notify the Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B3.3 If the Bidder is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder should request clarification as to the meaning or intent prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B3.4 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator to all Bidders by issuing an addendum.
- B3.5 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator only to the Bidder who made the enquiry.
- B3.6 The Bidder shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B3 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.

B4. ADDENDA

- B4.1 The Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission Deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.
- B4.2 The Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
- B4.2.1 Addenda will be available on the Bid Opportunities page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B4.2.2 The Bidder is responsible for ensuring that he has received all addenda and is advised to check the Materials Management Branch internet site for addenda regularly and shortly before the Submission Deadline, as may be amended by addendum.

B4.3 The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid. Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may render a Bid non-responsive.

B5. SUBSTITUTES

- B5.1 The Work is based on the Materials, Equipment and methods specified in the Bid Opportunity.
- B5.2 Substitutions shall not be allowed unless application has been made to and prior approval has been granted by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B5.3 Requests for approval of a substitute will not be considered unless received in writing by the Contract Administrator at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B5.4 The Bidder shall ensure that any and all requests for approval of a substitute:
 - (a) provide sufficient information and details to enable the Contract Administrator to determine the acceptability of the Plant, Material or method as either an approved equal or alternative:
 - (b) identify any and all changes required in the applicable Work, and all changes to any other Work, which would become necessary to accommodate the substitute;
 - (c) identify any anticipated cost or time savings that may be associated with the substitute;
 - (d) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved equal, the substitute will fully perform the functions called for by the general design, be of equal or superior substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the proposed work schedule and the dates specified in the Supplemental Conditions for Substantial Performance and Total Performance:
 - (e) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved alternative, the substitute will adequately perform the functions called for by the general design, be similar in substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the proposed work schedule and the dates specified in the Supplemental Conditions for Substantial Performance and Total Performance.
- B5.5 The Contract Administrator, after assessing the request for approval of a substitute, may in his sole discretion grant approval for the use of a substitute as an "approved equal" or as an "approved alternative", or may refuse to grant approval of the substitute.
- B5.6 The Contract Administrator will provide a response in writing, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, only to the Bidder who requested approval of the substitute.
- B5.6.1 The Bidder requesting and obtaining the approval of a substitute shall be entirely responsible for disseminating information regarding the approval to any person or persons he wishes to inform.
- B5.7 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved equal", any Bidder may use the approved equal in place of the specified item.
- B5.8 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved alternative", any Bidder bidding that approved alternative may base his Total Bid Price upon the specified item but may also indicate an alternative price based upon the approved alternative. Such alternatives will be evaluated in accordance with B14.
- B5.9 No later claim by the Contractor for an addition to the Total Bid Price because of any other changes in the Work necessitated by the use of an approved equal or an approved alternative will be considered.

B6. BID SUBMISSION

- B6.1 The Bid shall consist of the following components:
 - (a) Form A: Bid;
 - (b) Form B: Prices;
 - (c) Form G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond, or
 - (d) Form G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Undertaking, or
 - (e) a certified cheque or draft.
- B6.2 Further to B6.1, the Bidder should include the written correspondence from the Contract Administrator approving a substitute in accordance with B5.
- B6.3 All components of the Bid shall be fully completed or provided, and submitted by the Bidder no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely, to constitute a responsive Bid.
- B6.4 Bidders are advised not to include any information/literature except as requested in accordance with B6.1.
- B6.5 Bidders are advised that inclusion of terms and conditions inconsistent with the Bid Opportunity document, including the General Conditions, may result in the Bid being determined to be non-responsive.
- B6.6 The Bid shall be submitted enclosed and sealed in an envelope clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number and the Bidder's name and address.
- B6.6.1 Samples or other components of the Bid Submission which cannot reasonably be enclosed in the envelope may be packaged separately, but shall be clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number, the Bidder's name and address, and an indication that the contents are part of the Bidder's Bid Submission.
- B6.7 Bids submitted by facsimile transmission (fax) or internet electronic mail (e-mail) will not be accepted.
- B6.8 Bids shall be submitted to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance Department Materials Management Branch 185 King Street, Main Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

B7. BID

- B7.1 The Bidder shall complete Form A: Bid, making all required entries.
- B7.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his own name, his name shall be inserted;
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B7.3 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B7.2.

- B7.4 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid, the Bidder shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Bidder for purposes of the Bid.
- B7.5 Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid shall be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his own name, it shall be signed by the Bidder:
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, it shall be signed by its duly authorized officer or officers and the corporate seal, if the corporation has one, should be affixed;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name, or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.
- B7.5.1 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Bid shall be printed below such signatures.
- B7.5.2 All signatures should be witnessed, except where a corporate seal has been affixed.
- B7.6 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Bidder" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Bidders in the Bid and the Contract, when awarded, shall be both joint and several.

B8. PRICES

- B8.1 The Bidder shall state a price in Canadian funds for each item of the Work identified on Form B: Prices.
- B8.1.1 Prices on Form B: Prices shall not include the Goods and Services Tax (GST), which shall be extra where applicable.
- B8.2 The quantities listed on Form B: Prices are to be considered approximate only. The City will use said quantities for the purpose of comparing Bids.
- B8.3 The quantities for which payment will be made to the Contractor are to be determined by the Work actually performed and completed by the Contractor, to be measured as specified in the applicable Specifications.
- B8.4 The unit prices shall be payment in full for the <u>annual</u> collection and transportation of garbage to the Brady Road Landfill for each collection type outlined on Form B: Prices.

B9. QUALIFICATION

- B9.1 The Bidder shall:
 - (a) undertake to be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Bidder does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Bidder does carry on business; and
 - (b) be financially capable of carrying out the terms of the Contract; and
 - (c) have all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to perform the Work in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract.
- B9.2 The Bidder and any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) be responsible and not be suspended, debarred or in default of any obligations to the City a list of suspended or debarred individuals and companies is available on the Information

Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.

- B9.3 The Bidder and/or any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) have successfully carried out work similar in nature, scope and value to the Work; and
 - (b) be fully capable of performing the Work required to be in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract; and
 - (c) have a written workplace safety and health program, if required, pursuant to The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba);
- B9.4 The Bidder shall submit, within three (3) Business Days of a request by the Contract Administrator, proof satisfactory to the Contract Administrator of the qualifications of the Bidder and of any proposed Subcontractor.
- B9.5 The Bidder shall provide, on the request of the Contract Administrator, full access to any of the Bidder's equipment and facilities to confirm, to the Contract Administrator's satisfaction, that the Bidder's equipment and facilities are adequate to perform the Work.

B10. BID SECURITY

- B10.1 The Bidder shall provide bid security in the form of:
 - a bid bond, in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, and agreement to bond of a company registered to conduct the business of a surety in Manitoba, in the form included in the Bid Submission (Form G1: Bid Bond and Agreement to Bond); or
 - (b) an irrevocable standby letter of credit, in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, and undertaking issued by a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba and drawn on a branch located in Winnipeg, in the form included in the Bid Submission (Form G2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit and Undertaking); or
 - (c) a certified cheque or draft payable to "The City of Winnipeg", in the amount of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price, drawn on a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba.
- B10.1.1 If the Bidder submits alternative bids, the bid security shall be in the amount of the specified percentage of the highest Total Bid Price submitted.
- B10.1.2 All signatures on bid securities shall be original, and shall be witnessed or sealed as required.
- B10.2 The bid security of the successful Bidder and the next two lowest evaluated responsive and responsible Bidders will be released by the City when a Contract for the Work has been duly executed by the successful Bidder and the performance security furnished as provided herein. The bid securities of all other Bidders will be released when a Contract is awarded.
- B10.2.1 Where the bid security provided by the successful Bidder is in the form of a certified cheque or draft pursuant to B10.1(c), it will be deposited and retained by the City as the performance security and no further submission is required.
- B10.2.2 The City will not pay any interest on certified cheques or drafts furnished as bid security or subsequently retained as performance security.
- B10.3 The bid securities of all Bidders will be released by the City as soon as practicable following notification by the Contract Administrator to the Bidders that no award of Contract will be made pursuant to the Bid Opportunity.

B11. OPENING OF BIDS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

- B11.1 Bids will be opened publicly, after the Submission Deadline has elapsed, in the office of the Corporate Finance Department, Materials Management Branch, or in such other office as may be designated by the Manager of Materials.
- B11.1.1 Bidders or their representatives may attend.
- B11.1.2 Bids determined by the Manager of Materials, or his designate, to not include the bid security specified in B10 will not be read out.
- B11.2 After the public opening, the names of the Bidders and their Total Annual Bid Prices as read out (unevaluated, and pending review and verification of conformance with requirements) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B11.3 After award of Contract, the name(s) of the successful Bidder(s) and the Contract Amount(s) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- B11.4 The Bidder is advised that any information contained in any Bid may be released if required by City policy or procedures, by The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law.

B12. IRREVOCABLE BID

- B12.1 The Bid(s) submitted by the Bidder shall be irrevocable for the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid.
- B12.2 The acceptance by the City of any Bid shall not release the Bids of the next two lowest evaluated responsive Bidders and these Bidders shall be bound by their Bids on such Work until a Contract for the Work has been duly executed and the performance security furnished as herein provided, but any Bid shall be deemed to have lapsed unless accepted within the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid.

B13. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- B13.1 A Bidder may withdraw his Bid without penalty by giving written notice to the Manager of Materials at any time prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B13.1.1 Notwithstanding C22.5, the time and date of receipt of any notice withdrawing a Bid shall be the time and date of receipt as determined by the Manager of Materials.
- B13.1.2 The City will assume that any one of the contact persons named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid or the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid, and only such person, has authority to give notice of withdrawal.
- B13.1.3 If a Bidder gives notice of withdrawal prior to the Submission Deadline, the Manager of Materials will:
 - (a) retain the Bid until after the Submission Deadline has elapsed;
 - (b) open the Bid to identify the contact person named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid and the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 12 of Form A: Bid; and
 - (c) if the notice has been given by any one of the persons specified in B13.1.3(b), declare the Bid withdrawn.
- B13.2 A Bidder who withdraws his Bid after the Submission Deadline but before his Bid has been released or has lapsed as provided for in B12.2 shall be liable for such damages as are imposed upon the Bidder by law and subject to such sanctions as the Chief Administrative

The City of Winnipeg

Officer considers appropriate in the circumstances. The City, in such event, shall be entitled to all rights and remedies available to it at law, including the right to retain the Bidder's bid security.

B14. **EVALUATION OF BIDS**

- B14.1 Award of the Contract shall be based on the following bid evaluation criteria:
 - (a) compliance by the Bidder with the requirements of the Bid Opportunity (pass/fail);
 - (b) qualifications of the Bidder and the Subcontractors, if any, pursuant to B9 (pass/fail);
 - (c) Total Annual Bid Price;
 - (d) economic analysis of any approved alternative pursuant to B5.
- B14.2 Further to B14.1(a), the Award Authority may reject a Bid as being non-responsive if the Bid is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The Award Authority may reject all or any part of any Bid, or waive technical requirements or minor informalities or irregularities if the interests of the City so require.
- B14.3 Further to B14.1(b), the Award Authority shall reject any Bid submitted by a Bidder who does not demonstrate, in his Bid or in other information required to be submitted, that he is responsible and qualified.
- B14.4 Further to B14.1(c), the Total Annual Bid Price shall be the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shown on Form B: Prices.
- B14.4.1 If there is any discrepancy between the Total Bid Price written in figures, the Total Bid Price written in words and the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item, the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shall take precedence.
- This Contract will be awarded as a whole. B14.5

B15. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- B15.1 The City will give notice of the award of the Contract, or will give notice that no award will be made.
- The City will have no obligation to award a Contract to a Bidder, even though one or all of the B15.2 Bidders are determined to be responsible and qualified, and the Bids are determined to be responsive.
- Without limiting the generality of B15.2, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract B15.2.1 where:
 - (a) the prices exceed the available City funds for the Work;
 - (b) the prices are materially in excess of the prices received for similar work in the past;
 - (c) the prices are materially in excess of the City's cost to perform the Work, or a significant portion thereof, with its own forces;
 - (d) only one Bid is received: or
 - (e) in the judgment of the Award Authority, the interests of the City would best be served by not awarding a Contract.
- B15.3 Where an award of Contract is made by the City, the award shall be made to the responsible and qualified Bidder submitting the lowest evaluated responsive Bid.
- B15.3.1 Following the award of contract, a Bidder will be provided with information related to the evaluation of his Bid upon written request to the Contract Administrator.

- B15.4 Notwithstanding C4.1, the City will issue a purchase order to the successful Bidder in lieu of the execution of a Contract.
- B15.5 The Contract Documents, as defined in C1.1(n), in their entirety shall be deemed to be incorporated in and form a part of the purchase order notwithstanding that they are not necessarily attached to or accompany said purchase order.

PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS

CO. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- C0.1 The *General Conditions for Supply of Services* (Revision 2007 04 12) are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- C0.1.1 The *General Conditions for Supply of Services* are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Branch internet site at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt.
- C0.2 A reference in the Bid Opportunity to a section, clause or subclause with the prefix "C" designates a section, clause or subclause in the *General Conditions for Supply of Services*.

PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL

D1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

D1.1 In addition to the *General Conditions for Supply of Services*, these Supplemental Conditions are applicable to the Work of the Contract.

D2. SCOPE OF WORK

- D2.1 The Work to be done under the Contract shall consist of the collection of garbage from metal containers of a size and type suitable for mechanically dumping into collection vehicles, as envisioned by Clause 7(a)iii of the Solid Waste By-law. The area boundaries for collection shall be: South of the Assiniboine River and West of the Red River in the City of Winnipeg. The period for the contract will be February 1, 2008 to January 31, 2014.
- D2.2 The major components of the Work are as follows:
 - (a) Provision of regular garbage collection services to apartments, small commercial premises, and Civic operated facilities that utilize authorized metal containers suitable for front-loading or roll-off garbage collection vehicles. The frequency of collection will be bi-weekly, once or twice per week on a site specific basis as per the collection schedule in Appendix A. All of the collected garbage will be transported to the Brady Road Landfill.
 - (b) As commercial premises now pay for the garbage collection service, a provision to unlock garbage containers in order to empty the contents may is also included. This service is provided at an extra cost on an as-required basis to commercial customers. The Contractor will provide a padlock and key to each location requesting service, with the customer being responsible for maintenance and security of the lock and key.

D3. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

D3.1 The Contract Administrator is:

Dan P. Cyrenne, B.Sc. Supervisor of Garbage Collection Contracts 111-1199 Pacific Ave

Telephone No.(204) 986-3285 Facsimile No. (204) 774-6729

D3.2 At the pre-commencement meeting, the Contract Administrator will identify additional personnel representing the Contract Administrator and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.

D4. CONTRACTOR'S SUPERVISOR

- D4.1 Further to C6.19, the Contractor shall employ and keep on the Work, at all times during the performance of the Work, a competent supervisor and assistants, if necessary, acceptable to the Contract Administrator. The supervisor shall represent the Contractor on the Site. The supervisor shall not be replaced without the prior consent of the Contract Administrator unless the supervisor proves to be unsatisfactory to the Contractor and ceases to be in his employ.
- D4.2 Before commencement of Work, the Contractor shall identify his designated supervisor and any additional personnel representing the Contractor and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.
- D4.2.1 Further to C5.5, Contract Administrator may give instructions or orders to the Contractor's supervisor and such instructions or orders shall be deemed to have been given to the Contractor.

SUBMISSIONS

D5. AUTHORITY TO CARRY ON BUSINESS

D5.1 The Contractor shall be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Contractor does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Contractor does carry on business, throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

D6. INSURANCE

- D6.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain the following insurance coverage:
 - (a) commercial general liability insurance, in the amount of at least two million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) inclusive, with The City of Winnipeg added as an additional insured; such liability policy to also contain a cross-liability clause, non-owned automobile liability and products and completed operations cover, to remain in place at all times during the performance of the Work;
 - (b) automobile liability insurance for owned automobiles used for or in connection with the Work in the amount of at least two million dollars (\$5,000,000.00), to remain in place at all times during the performance of the Work.
- D6.2 Deductibles shall be borne by the Contractor.
- D6.3 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a certificate(s) of insurance, in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the commencement of any Work on the Site but in no event later than the date specified in C4.1 for the return of the executed Contract.
- D6.4 The Contractor shall not cancel, materially alter, or cause the policy to lapse without providing at least thirty (30) Calendar Days prior written notice to the Contract Administrator.
- D6.5 The City shall have the right to alter the limits and/or coverages as reasonably required from time to time during the continuance of this agreement.

D7. PERFORMANCE SECURITY

- D7.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain performance security until the expiration of the warranty period in the form of:
 - (a) a performance bond of a company registered to conduct the business of a surety in Manitoba, in the form attached to these Supplemental Conditions (Form H1: Performance Bond), in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price; or
 - (b) an irrevocable standby letter of credit issued by a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba and drawn on a branch located in Winnipeg, in the form attached to these Supplemental Conditions (Form H2: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit), in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price; or
 - (c) a certified cheque or draft payable to "The City of Winnipeg", drawn on a bank or other financial institution registered to conduct business in Manitoba, in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Total Annual Bid Price.
- D7.1.1 Where the performance security is in the form of a certified cheque or draft, it will be deposited by the City. The City will not pay any interest on certified cheques or drafts furnished as performance security.
- D7.2 If the bid security provided in his Bid was not a certified cheque or draft pursuant to B10.1(c), the Contractor shall provide the City Solicitor with the required performance security within

seven (7) Calendar Days of notification of the award of the Contract and prior to the commencement of any Work on the Site.

SCHEDULE OF WORK

D8. COMMENCEMENT

- D8.1 The Contractor shall not commence any Work until he is in receipt of a notice of award from the City authorizing the commencement of the Work.
- D8.2 The Contractor shall not commence any Work on the Site until:
 - (a) the Contract Administrator has confirmed receipt and approval of:
 - (i) evidence of authority to carry on business specified in D5;
 - (ii) evidence of the workers compensation coverage specified in C6.14;
 - (iii) evidence of the insurance specified in D6;
 - (iv) the performance security specified in D7;
 - (v) evidence of routes as specified in E3.1, and
 - (vi) evidence of equipment lists as specified in E4.1.
 - (b) the Contractor has attended a meeting with the Contract Administrator, or the Contract Administrator has waived the requirement for a meeting.

CONTROL OF WORK

D9. PRIME CONTRACTOR – THE WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (MANITOBA)

D9.1 Further to C6.23, the Contractor shall be the Prime Contractor and shall serve as, and have the duties of the Prime Contractor in accordance with The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba).

D10. SAFETY

- D10.1 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for safety at the Site and for compliance with all laws, rules, regulations and practises required by the applicable safety legislation.
- D10.2 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for securing the Site, and any existing facility thereon, and for the proper care and protection of the Work already performed.
- D10.3 The Contractor shall do whatever is necessary to ensure that:
 - (a) no person, property, right, easement or privilege is injured, damaged or infringed by reason of the Contractor's activities in performing the Work;
 - (b) the health and safety of all persons employed in the performance of the Work or otherwise is not endangered by the method or means of its performance;
 - (c) adequate medical services are available to all persons employed on the Work and at all times during the performance of the Work;
 - (d) adequate sanitation measures are taken and facilities provided with respect to the Work.
 - (e) pedestrian and other traffic on any public or private road or waterway is not unduly impeded, interrupted or endangered by the performance or existence of the Work or Plant;
 - (f) fire hazards in or about the Work are eliminated.

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

D11. INVOICES

- D11.1 Payments to the Contractor will be made following the end of each month based on a certificate prepared by the Contract Administrator, indicating each payment item in Form B: Prices that were fully and properly serviced in accordance with the Specifications during the referenced monthly period. Month-end payments will be on the basis of one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual unit price Bid for each item collected fully, or added to the collection list during the previous month. No compensation will be applied for pick-up items deleted at any point during the previous month.
- D11.2 The Contractor will be allowed a thirty (30) day period after any payment certificate is initiated by the Contract Administrator for objection to the quantities therein, with such statement of objection, in writing, to be accompanied by a location pickup list showing the Contractors quantity considerations. The decision of the Contract Administrator will be final following a review of such objection.

D12. PAYMENT

D12.1 Further to C11, effective January 1, 2007 the City may at its option pay the Contractor by direct deposit to the Contractor's banking institution.

D13. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

D13.1 Further to C11, payment shall be in Canadian funds net thirty (30) Calendar Days after receipt and approval of the Contractor's invoice.

D14. ANNUAL REVIEW - INFLATIONARY ADJUSTMENT

- D14.1 The unit prices specified on Form B: Prices will be adjusted on the first Contract anniversary date, and subsequent anniversary dates based on the percentage increase or decrease in the unit prices for the Contract year, based on eighty-five percent (85%) of the All-items Consumer Price Index for Winnipeg, normally referred to by Statistics Canada as Table 326-0001. The calculation of the adjustment will be based on February 1 of the previous year to February 1 of the current year. The first inflationary adjustment shall occur on February 1, 2009. Nonetheless; the maximum annual adjustment shall not exceed ten percent (10%).
- D14.2 The index above will be those prepared by Statistics Canada. Since the index may not be available from Statistics Canada until some time after the adjustment date, the amount of adjustment will be retroactive to the adjustment date.

WARRANTY

D15. WARRANTY

D15.1 Warranty is as stated in C12.

FORM H1: PERFORMANCE BOND (See D7)

KNOV	W ALL MEN BY THE	ESE PRESENTS THAT	
(herei	nafter called the "Pr	incipal"), and	
	nafter called the "S I the "Obligee"), in the		firmly bound unto THE CITY OF WINNIPEG (hereinafter
			dollars (\$
sum t	he Principal and the		gee, or its successors or assigns, for the payment of which es, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and sents.
WHEI	REAS the Principal	nas entered into a writte	en contract with the Obligee dated the
	day of	, 20	, for:
BID C	PPORTUNITY NO.	432-2007	
			ES FROM APARTMENTS AND SMALL COMMERCIAL EA OF THE CITY OF WINNIPEG
which	is by reference mad	de part hereof and is he	reinafter referred to as the "Contract".
NOW	THEREFORE the o	ondition of the above of	bligation is such that if the Principal shall:
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)	forth in the Contra perform the Work make all the payr in every other re Contract; and indemnify and sa demands of ever claims, actions Compensation Ad	act and in accordance we in a good, proper, work ments whether to the Obspect comply with the live harmless the Obligery description as set for loss, damages of ct, or any other Act or	every part thereof in the manner and within the times set with the terms and conditions specified in the Contract; smanlike manner; oligee or to others as therein provided; conditions and perform the covenants contained in the ee against and from all loss, costs, damages, claims, and orth in the Contract, and from all penalties, assessments, r compensation whether arising under "The Workers otherwise arising out of or in any way connected with the ee Contract or any part thereof during the term of the
	•	warranty period provide	, ,
			otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. The Surety an the sum specified above.
nothin or rel	ng of any kind or ma	atter whatsoever that wi	ED that the Surety shall be liable as Principal, and that ill not discharge the Principal shall operate as a discharge usage relating to the liability of Sureties to the contrary
IN WI	TNESS WHEREOF	the Principal and Suret	ty have signed and sealed this bond the
	day of	, 20	

The City of Winnipeg Bid Opportunity No. 432-2007 Supplemental Conditions Page 6 of 8

SIGNED AND SEALED n the presence of:	(Name of Principal)	
Witness)	Per:	(Seal)
	Per:	
	(Name of Surety)	
	By: (Attorney-in-Fact)	(Seal)

FORM H2: IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT (PERFORMANCE SECURITY)

(See D7)

(Date)	
Corpo Legal 185 K	ry of Winnipeg ate Services Department Services Division ng Street, 3rd Floor eg MB R3B 1J1
RE:	PERFORMANCE SECURITY - BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 432-2007
	MECHANICAL COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTES FROM APARTMENTS AND SMALL COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS IN THE SOUTH WEST AREA OF THE CITY OF WINNIPEG
Pursu	nt to the request of and for the account of our customer,
(Name	f Contractor)
(Addres	of Contractor)
	REBY ESTABLISH in your favour our irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit for a sum not exceeding aggregate
	Canadian dollars.
demai Letter payme	tandby Letter of Credit may be drawn on by you at any time and from time to time upon writter d for payment made upon us by you. It is understood that we are obligated under this Standby of Credit for the payment of monies only and we hereby agree that we shall honour your demand for the without inquiring whether you have a right as between yourself and our customer to make such d and without recognizing any claim of our customer or objection by the customer to payment by us.
	nount of this Standby Letter of Credit may be reduced from time to time only by amounts drawn upor u or by formal notice in writing given to us by you if you desire such reduction or are willing that it be
Partia	drawings are permitted.
	gage with you that all demands for payment made within the terms and currency of this Standby of Credit will be duly honoured if presented to us at:
(Addres	
and w	confirm and hereby undertake to ensure that all demands for payment will be duly honoured by us.

All demands for payment shall specifically state that they are drawn under this Standby Letter of Credit.
Subject to the condition hereinafter set forth, this Standby Letter of Credit will expire on
(Date)

It is a condition of this Standby Letter of Credit that it shall be deemed to be automatically extended from year to year without amendment from the present or any future expiry date, unless at least 30 days prior to the present or any future expiry date, we notify you in writing that we elect not to consider this Standby Letter of Credit to be renewable for any additional period.

This Standby Letter of Credit may not be revoked or amended without your prior written approval.

This credit is subject to the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credit (1993 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce Publication Number 500.

(Name	of bank or financial institution)
Per:	
	(Authorized Signing Officer)
Per:	
	(Authorized Signing Officer)

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL

E1. APPLICABLE SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS

- E1.1 These Specifications shall apply to the Work.
- E1.2 Bidders are reminded that requests for approval of substitutes as an approved equal or an approved alternative shall be made in accordance with B5.

E2. CONTRACT QUANTITIES

- E2.1 The contract quantities for these Works during any monthly period will consist of the total number of units serviced in each category identified for collection and disposal in Form B: Prices. The total inventory as of May 24, 2007 is as listed in the attached Appendix A; and for each time period in question, it will be the adjusted category totals as formally modified in writing from time to time by the Contract Administrator.
- E2.2 Service shall be extended to all new or additional apartments, small commercial premises or City owned facilities immediately when directed in writing by the Contract Administrator. The Contractor shall provide this extension of service for the same unit price specified in Form B: Prices.
- E2.3 The amount payable in this Contract will be reduced when any apartment, small commercial premises, or City owned facility is no longer generating solid waste. All such changes will be carried out for month-end payment purposes.
- E2.4 The Contractor shall note that customers have the right to use or reject solid waste collection service arranged through the City, and therefore the City cannot guarantee the actual number of premises under this Contract. Also, the Contract Administrator may designate the type of container to be used, which may cause an increase or a reduction in the number of premises served.
- E2.5 The Contract Administrator will provide the Contractor notice in writing of any changes, either additions or deletions, or change in frequency of collection of apartments, small commercial premises or City owned facilities serviced under this Contract.
- E2.6 Notwithstanding E2.5 above, the Contractor shall be responsible to notify the Contract Administrator if there is any change in collection from an apartment, small commercial premised or City owned facility that would result in the service changing to that location. Examples would include, but are not limited to, business ceases to exist, garbage container removed by a third party, increase or decrease of garbage container size or quantity, apartment building no longer occupied because of building damage etc.

E2.7 The following table is the 2006 monthly tonnage for the Contract Area broken down by months:

Month	Tonnage	Month	Tonnage
January	1096.8	July	1164.0
February	888.4	August	1284.9
March	1090.8	September	1229.7
April	1193.0	October	1321.6
May	1380.2	November	1173.3
June	1304.6	December	1073.3

E3. SCHEDULE OF COLLECTION ROUTES AND DAYS OF COLLECTION

E3.1 Collection Schedule:

- (a) The Contractor shall file, with the Contract Administrator, a detailed schedule of collection routes and days of collection for each route at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the commencement of the Work of this Contract. This schedule is subject to the approval of the Contract Administrator. Pick-up locations shall be scheduled on a bi-weekly, once-aweek basis or a twice-per-week basis as indicated in Appendix A and as designated by the Contract Administrator.
- (b) The Contractor shall keep the collection schedule and collection route list up to date and shall provide the Contract Administrator with a copy of the above records within **thirty (30)** Calendar days of the Anniversary date of the Contract.

E3.2 Hours of Operation

(a) The hours of collection shall be between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. except that, in the case of unusual delay, emergency or equipment breakdown, the Contractor may extend the hours of collection accordingly, provided that the Contractor reports any deviation from the schedule to the Contract Administrator immediately or as may be required elsewhere in this Contract. In any event, however, the Contractor may not start earlier than 7:00 a.m. or carry out collections past 10:00 p.m.

E3.3 Holidays

- (a) The Contractor shall maintain the specified collection schedule at all times, notwithstanding that periodically, a scheduled collection day will fall upon a statutory holiday, with the exception of Remembrance Day, Christmas Day, and New Year's Day. On those occasions, the Contract Administrator may permit specific variation (on an occurrence-byoccurrence basis) where advance notice is provided to, and approved by, the Contract Administrator at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the statutory holiday.
- (b) Where the disposal facility is not scheduled to be open as defined in E18 herein, the Contractor may elect to have the City provide limited disposal services at a charge of \$150.00 per hour.

E3.4 Service Change

The City of Winnipeg Specifications
Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007 Page 3 of 9

(a) Should the Contractor wish to change the specified schedule of pick-ups during the course of the Contract, the Contract Administrator shall be notified in writing at least six (6) calendar weeks prior to the proposed date of change. Any change shall be subject to the approval of the Contract Administrator. The Contractor shall be responsible for the duplication and delivery to each affected premises of a suitable notice of the change, prepared and authorized by the Contract Administrator, from relevant information supplied by the Contractor.

(b) The current collection schedule is based on services being provided on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday. Consideration will be given by the Contract Administrator to the Contractor requesting a change to a six-day per week operation, provided all the terms and conditions of this Contract are complied with.

E3.5 Other Wastes

(a) Wastes from any establishment other than those serviced by this Contract will <u>not</u> be allowed to be collected along with the wastes generated from this Contract. In the event that the Contractor does collect other non-contract wastes, the applicable tipping fee will be charged for all the wastes delivered to the disposal facility by that particular truck on that day, and as well, a \$1000 surcharge will be assessed to the Contractor.

E3.6 Peak Periods:

(a) There is considerable variation in the amount of solid waste to be picked up in a given area periodically, particularly in the Christmas, and spring or fall clean-up seasons. The Contractor shall meet this variation in demand by using extra equipment, manpower or overtime, if required, in order that the solid waste is picked up regularly as scheduled.

E4. EQUIPMENT

- E4.1 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a specific list of all equipment, including identification numbers, to be used in the execution of this Contract, such list to be provided at least **thirty (30)** calendar days prior to starting the Contract.
 - (a) Whenever an addition or deletion is proposed, the Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator, in writing, at least two (2) calendar weeks prior to this change actually taking place.
 - (b) Under emergency conditions caused by equipment breakdown, snowstorms or similar conditions, same day notice will be considered adequate.
- E4.2 To ensure equipment suitability for effective contract performance throughout the duration of the Work, vehicles used in the performance of these Works shall be no older than model year 2004 without the expressed written permission of the Contract Administrator.
- E4.3 The Contractor shall have access to spare collection vehicles should circumstances such as equipment breakdowns prevent the Contractor from maintaining the collection schedule.
- E4.4 Prior to the start of this Contract, GPS monitoring equipment will be installed on the vehicles used for this Work. The monitoring of vehicles will be to ensure the Contractor is providing collection services in a timely and effective manner. The equipment will be installed at the expense of the City of Winnipeg.
- E4.5 The Contractor will have access to the GPS monitoring system. Training on the use of this system will be provided.
- E4.6 In addition to the equipment safety requirements required by law, all garbage collection vehicles operating in a landfill site shall be equipped with the following safety equipment:
 - (a) Back-up alarms;

The City of Winnipeg Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007

- (b) Transmission safety switches (kill switches);
- (c) Power take-off (P.T.O.) indicator lights;
- (d) "Maxi" brakes;
- (e) Operating lights.
- E4.7 The Contractor's name and unit number shall adequately identify the Contractor's equipment so that landfill staff and collection customers can readily identify a unit from a distance of five (5) metres.

E5. INSPECTION

E5.1 Periodic inspections of the Contract area, including inspection of vehicles and contents therein contained, may be made by the Contract Administrator to verify that the service supplied by the Contractor is adequate in all respects. If any deviations from the requirements of the Contract exist, they will be noted, and the Contractor or representative will be notified, either orally or in writing, of the corrective measures to be taken. Such periodic inspections do not relieve the Contractor in any way from making independent inspections to ensure that the Work is being performed satisfactorily.

E6. COMMUNICATIONS

- E6.1 The Contractor shall maintain an office, equipped with a phone and facsimile machine and staffed by a competent person, open from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., not including Saturdays, Sundays or statutory holidays (when not carrying out the Works under E3.4(b)herein).
- E6.2 The Contractor shall have a qualified field supervisor on duty throughout all hours of the performance of these Works, and they must be equipped with a cellular telephone in order to ensure a constant ability to be contacted by the City and to enable a courteous, speedy, and efficient response to all service deficiencies.
- E6.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Contract Administrator a prioritized listing of the Contractor's staff who can be contacted after the office hours noted above if required. The Contractor shall ensure that this listing is current by providing the Contract Administrator with an updated listing whenever changes to staff contacts occur.
- E6.4 Should the City be unable to contact the Contractor to respond to service deficiency concerns, the City will immediately address the deficiency in service and the associated costs shall be charged to the Contractor as liquidated damages.

E7. SERVICE STANDARDS

- E7.1 One of the goals of the Solid Waste Services Division is to provide excellent service to its customers.
- E7.2 In order to determine the level of service being provided, the City operates a Call Centre and tracks service deficiencies and other calls from its customers. Every call to the Call Centre generates a service request. Also, service requests can be generated by City employees. Service requests are categorized into five main categories:
 - (a) Service Deficiency;
 - (b) Request for Service;
 - (c) Same Day Miss;
 - (d) Miscellaneous;
 - (e) Property Damage.

Specifications Page 5 of 9

The City of Winnipeg Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007

- E7.3 Service deficiencies are typically, but not limited to, instances of:
 - (a) Missed collection;
 - (b) Misplaced collection container;
 - (c) Spillage;
 - (d) Dangerous driving;
 - (e) Profanity;
 - (f) Excess noise.
- E7.4 Property damages are typically, but not limited to, instances of:
 - (a) Damaged collection container;
 - (b) Damage to public or private property.
- E7.5 A call from a customer regarding missed collection that is received on the same day as the scheduled collection is not a service deficiency.
- E7.6 The Contact Administrator shall provide to the Contractor a copy of every service request, except those classified as miscellaneous. It is the intent of the City during this Contract to supply and install a computer terminal and associated software in the Contractor's office to directly receive service requests electronically. The Contractor will be required to complete the work order electronically and route to the City in order to complete the service request. The City will provide software application training during this process.
- E7.7 If the service request is a service deficiency, the Contractor shall remedy the service deficiency within 24 hours of receipt, and report back to the City within 48 hours of receipt, the time and date when the remedy occurred. Further to E7.6, the Contractor will be required to report back by noon of the following Working Day when the service requests are transmitted electronically. Failure to do so will result in liquidated damages of \$50.00 for each calendar day that the waste goes uncollected. The sum, as defined above as liquidated damages, will be deducted from the Contractor's payment as liquidated damages. These considerations are not intended to be applied to major service delays occasioned by conditions described in E9.1 except where the Contractor does not advise, nor offer, the Contract Administrator a satisfactory plan of action to correct the referenced service deficiency.
- E7.8 If there are more than two (2) service deficiencies and property damages on any day, liquidated damages of \$50.00 per service deficiency or property damage in excess of two (2) will be assessed.
- E7.9 If there are zero (0) service deficiencies and property damages on any day, an incentive bonus will be paid in the amount of \$50.00 per day.
- E7.10 In order to allow for the Contractor to become familiar with the work, E7.8 and E7.9 will not apply for the first month.
- E7.11 Any and all claims for damage assigned to the Contractor by the City will be classified as property damage, and must be handled within the same timeframe as in E7.7. If, after one collection cycle, the property damage is still unresolved, the City will settle the claim and deduct any material and liquidated damages from the monthly progress estimate.

E8. DISMISSAL OF EMPLOYEES

E8.1 In addition to C5.6 of the General Conditions, the Contract Administrator may request the suspension, discharge, or other disciplinary action of any employee directly involved in the

The City of Winnipeg Specifications
Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007 Page 6 of 9

collection process for one or more of the following offences during working hours, and the Contractor shall comply with such request as promptly as possible:

- (a) Found in possession of or under the influence of alcohol and/or mind-altering drugs;
- (b) The use of foul, profane, vulgar or obscene language;
- (c) Solicitation of gratuities or tips from the public for services performed under this Contract;
- (d) The refusal to collect and/or handle solid waste placed out for pick-up in accordance with this Contract;
- (e) The wanton or malicious damage or destruction of containers or private property;
- (f) The wanton or malicious scattering or spilling of solid waste; or
- (g) The provision of collection services by staff who are clothed in a manner that is clearly of an unacceptable public standard.

E9. WORK PERFORMANCE AND EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN

- E9.1 If, in the opinion of the Contract Administrator, the Contractor is not performing the Work reasonably in accordance with the approved schedule, the Contract Administrator may demand, in writing, more trucks and/or staff to be provided by the Contractor immediately, and upon the Contractor's failure to provide them, the City may arrange to hire additional trucks and staff and charge the cost of such hire to the Contractor, in addition to any applicable liquidated damages.
- E9.2 The Contractor shall immediately notify the Contract Administrator or designate whenever peak period excesses or equipment breakdowns occur that are likely to generate delays in the regularly provided collection service. The Contract Administrator shall be advised as to the Contractor's plans to correct this deficiency in service.
- E9.3 The Contractor shall maintain the specified collection schedules for all premises at all times including locations experiencing a labour dispute. Certain properties included in these Works, such as nursing homes for example, may be subject to picketing or other obstruction to container access, and the Contractor shall employ legal techniques such as using non-unionized operators or supervisors to take collection equipment across picket lines, or using early/late schedule variations to avoid same, to ensure adherence to required schedule frequency.

E10. IMPASSABLE ALLEYS AND/OR STREETS

- E10.1 The solid waste shall be removed under all weather conditions, with the exception of impassable streets and/or alleys due to an act of God (such as a flood or an exceptionally heavy snowfall), which temporarily prevents the performance of the Works of the Contract. However, even in such cases, areas or parts of areas, which are able to be collected, shall be serviced. Service may be temporarily postponed only with the permission of the Contract Administrator. Should a temporary postponement of service be allowed, service must be resumed at the earliest possible time following the postponement, or as stipulated by the Contract Administrator.
- E10.2 Should weather conditions exist such that the Contract Administrator deems it necessary to omit certain pick-ups altogether, no payments will be made, even though the garbage is generated and shall be picked up on subsequent collections. Payments for partial monthly pick-ups shall be pro-rated.
- E10.3 The Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator of any alley or street that the Contractor considers impassable due to mud or construction. In the event that the street and/or alley is declared by the Contract Administrator to be impassable, the Contractor and Contract Administrator shall mutually agree to a method of removing the solid waste, and the Contractor

Specifications Page 7 of 9

The City of Winnipeg Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007

shall remove the solid waste within the next two working days. Payment for the additional work involved in the pick-up of the solid waste removed in this manner will be made as extra Work under this Contract. The extra work entitlement shall be only that Work which is required by the Contractor to remove the solid waste from the impassable street or lane to a point where it can be picked up by the Contractor at the nearest passable street or lane.

E10.4 No extra work shall be carried out until the Contractor and Contract Administrator decide upon the extra Work price, in writing, in accordance with C7.4 and C7.8 of the General Conditions.

E11. DEALING WITH IMPROPERLY STORED/PLACED SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

- E11.1 Should the Contractor find that the solid waste is not placed in accordance with the Solid Waste By-Law 1340/76 and its applicable amendments, the Contractor shall attempt to pick up the solid waste and then notify the Contract Administrator of the By-Law infraction within twenty-four (24) hours accordingly. Alternatively, if the infraction is such as to make the pick-up unreasonable, the Contractor may leave the pick-up and notify the Contract Administrator as soon as possible within that working day or commencement of the subsequent working day. The Contract Administrator may request the Contractor or supervisor to meet, at a time stipulated by the Contract Administrator, at the location of the pick-up where the By-Law infraction exists to explain the alleged infraction. If there is an infraction of the By-Law, then the Contract Administrator will take immediate steps to have the By-Law provisions enforced, and will subsequently notify the Contractor to resume garbage collection. Where a bona fide By-law violation was confirmed as sufficient to render the collection unreasonable, the missed pick-up provisions of E7.2 will not be applied. The determination of the Contract Administrator in this regard will be final and binding. Other examples of infractions include automobiles parked near the bin(s) so as to prevent safe access, construction activities in the immediate area of the bin(s), etc.
- E11.2 Where excess material, ozone depleting substances (fridges, freezer, etc.) or bulky wastes are placed outside of the container so as to render dumping impractical or dangerous, the Contractor can defer such collection until the Contract Administrator can enforce the Solid Waste By-law and have the property owner correct the placement deficiencies, provided however, that the Contract Administrator is immediately notified of such collection deferral decision by the Contractor. Failure to notify may result in the deferral judged as a missed collection under E7.
- E11.3 Where excess material is piled outside of the containers so as to render container dumping difficult during the immediate post-Christmas collection only, the Contractor shall not leave the container uncollected but shall carry out whatever supplementary measures are necessary for collection (including hand removal of interfering disposal material). The Contract Administrator shall be the sole authority over the degree of reasonableness applicable to each potential missed collection determination under E7.

E12. DAMAGE OR MISUSE OF SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS

E12.1 The Contractor shall employ reasonable care not to damage or misuse any solid waste containers, and the Contractor shall replace emptied bins in the same location as prior to pick-up. Failure to respond promptly to violations of this Clause may result in correction by the City with costs recoverable as liquidated damages. Should container or property damage result from unreasonable use of any container, as determined at the sole discretion of the Contract Administrator, the alleged damage claim will be forwarded to the Contractor for resolution. Should a successful claim subsequently be adjudicated and paid due to failure by the Contractor to reasonably respond to a claimant, the costs of the claim will be deducted from the Contractor's payments as a performance deficiency.

The City of Winnipeg Specifications
Bid Opportunity No.. 432-2007 Page 8 of 9

E13. GARBAGE SPILLAGE

E13.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for satisfactorily cleaning up any spillage resulting from the unreasonable use of any garbage container, as determined at the sole discretion of the Contract Administrator.

- E13.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for any spillage resulting from leakage of any fluids that may be discharged from the Contractor's equipment during and after collection at any site. Examples include hydraulic fluid and 'garbage juice'.
- E13.3 The Contractor shall clean up solid spillage promptly and completely. Where spillage includes waste oils, paints and other liquids, the Contractor shall use appropriate measures, as approved by the Contract Administrator, to remove all traces of the liquid as practicable.
- E13.4 In the case of a fire occurring in a loaded garbage packer and the load being dumped at the location where the fire occurred, the Contractor shall be responsible to clean up the spillage as soon as the fire is brought under control, and to complete it on the same day.
- E13.5 The clean up of any spillage will be considered incidental to the Contract, and no additional payments will be made for any such Work.
- E13.6 Failure to satisfactorily clean up spillage according to the above may result in the City undertaking or authorizing the clean-up, and all costs incurred will be charged to the Contractor as liquidated damages.

E14. DEAD ANIMALS

E14.1 The Contractor shall not be required to pick up dead animals.

E15. BULKY WASTES

- E15.1 The Contractor will not be required to carry out special collections for bulky waste items in these Works (Appendix B contains a link to the Solid Waste By-law where the definition of bulky waste can be found). However, there is no requirement herein that bulky waste materials contained within any container be removed prior to collection, unless they present an unsafe or unreasonable impediment to collection.
- E15.2 The provisions of E11 regarding the improper placement of solid wastes shall apply to bulky wastes that impede a safe and reasonable collection of any container.

E16. SOLID WASTE BY-LAW – TERM INTERPRETATIONS

- E16.1 The Solid Waste By-Law 1340/76, as periodically amended by City Council is, for purposes of ready reference, a part of these specifications; and the latest amended version is attached as Appendix B. All terms and requirements used in and under this Contract shall be in accordance with the Solid Waste By-Law, except for the interpretation of the By-Law outlined below:
 - (a) That Section 7(a) of By-law 1340/76 which reads "covered metal containers as approved by the Designated Officer, of a size and type suitable for mechanically dumping into collection vehicles. Such containers shall be used in all locations where the quantity of solid waste equals or exceeds 1.5 cubic metres per week and where suitable conditions exist for mechanical collection," shall be interpreted to mean containers designed for mechanical overhead dumping into collection vehicles, as well as "roll-off" type containers designed for garbage collection and for transport by dedicated roll-off collection equipment.
 - (b) "Apartments" means apartments as defined in By-law 1340/76 and amendments thereto except that, for the purposes of this Contract, collections are to be made only from

apartment blocks where there are "roll-off" containers, compactor containers, and containers designed for mechanical overhead dumping, contingent upon the containers and their placements receiving approval of the Contract Administrator as conforming to the Solid Waste By-law.

E17. DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY UNDER THE SOLID WASTE BY-LAW

E17.1 Wherever the Solid Waste By-Law (By-Law 1340/76) and amendments thereto, provides for discretionary authority by the Commissioner or designate, or where this discretionary authority is implied in the By-Law, this discretionary authority, as it pertains to matters under this Contract, shall lie with the Contract Administrator.

E18. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITE

- E18.1 The designated solid waste disposal site for this Contract shall be the City's Brady Road Landfill facility, which is located approximately two kilometres south of the south Perimeter Highway (PTH #101) west of Pembina Highway (PTH #75) on Brady Road.
- E18.2 No solid waste collected under this Contract shall be deposited in any place inside or outside the City other than E18.1.
- E18.3 The hours of operation of the Brady Road Landfill are currently as follows:

(a) Weekdays 06:00 to 18:00
 (b) Saturdays 08:00 to 16:00
 (c) Sundays and Holidays 09:00 to 17:00

These hours of operation are presently established, but are subject to change by City Council.

- E18.4 The landfill is closed each year on Remembrance Day (November 11), Christmas Day (December 25) and New Year's Day (January 1).
- E18.5 Should the solid waste disposal facility be open longer hours, or on certain statutory holidays, the Contractor shall be permitted to take advantage of these hours, subject to the hours of work limitations of E3. During occasional peak garbage generation periods, the City may keep the landfill open after hours, at its discretion, upon specific daily request by the Contractor to the Supervisor of Disposal.

E19. DISPOSAL CHARGES

E19.1 The Contractor shall not be charged for disposal of solid waste collected under the terms of this Contract.

E20. METRIC MEASUREMENTS

E20.1 All garbage bins noted in Appendix A are sized in metric units. The copy of By-Law 1340/76 and amendments thereto, forming Appendix B of this specification, is in metric measurements.

APPENDIX A – LIST, TYPE AND FREQUENCY OF PICKUP

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
1	Abercorn Grove	Abercorn Grove Condos.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
415	Academy Rd	The Leather Patch	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
525	Academy Rd	Premium Properties	1	1.5	Tues.
545	Academy Rd	Essentique Spa / Bagels & Bagels	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
550	Academy Rd	The Fusion Grill	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
100	Adamar Rd	Delta Manor	1	30	Mon.
26	Agassiz Dr	Winnipeg Mennonite Elementary Schools Inc.	1	1.5	Thur.
770	Allegheny Dr	The Polo Club Apts.	6	4.5	Mon./Thur.
277	Arbuthnot St	Fensala Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
346	Arbuthnot St	Estelle Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
249	Arnold Ave	Our Lady of Victory Church/School	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
346	Arnold Ave	Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
90	Ashland Ave	Riverview Community Centre	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
364	Ashland Ave	Ashland Court	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
460	Assiniboine Park Dr	Civic Accommodations - Zoo office	1	15	as required
700	Assiniboine Park Dr	Civic Accommodations - Zoo	1	4.5	Fri.
735	Assiniboine Park Dr	Conservatory Restaurant	1	4.5	Fri.
1043	Bairdmore Blvd	Bairdmore Square	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1044	Bairdmore Blvd	Bairdmore Estates	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
389	Barker Blvd	River West Gardens	3	4.5	Tues./Fri.
50	Barnes St	Worldwide Church of God	1	3	Thur.
30	Baylor Ave	Baylor Apartments	1	6	Mon./Thur.
30	Baylor Ave	Baylor Apartments	9	4.5	Mon./Thur.
55	Bayridge Ave	Condominiums	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1321	Beaumont St	Beaumont Meadows	6	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1	Boulton Bay	Can. Order of Foresters Haven #2	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
21	Boulton Bay	Apartments	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
45	Boulton Bay	The Boulton	2	3	Tues./Fri.
620	Brock St	Herzlia-Adas Veshuron Synagogue	1	2.25	Tues.
1601	Buffalo Pl	Reimax Professionals	1	3	Mon.
341	Cadboro Rd	Wpg. Police Range	1	4.5	Thur.
850	Cambridge St	Cambridge Gardens	2	2.25	Mon./Thur.
870	Cambridge St	Cambridge South Apartments	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
880	Cambridge St	Clover Gardens	5	2.25	Mon./Thur.
969	Cambridge St	McKinnon House Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
934	Carrigan Pl	Carrigan Place Apts.	3	4.5	Mon./Thur.
870	Carter Ave	Bethel Mennonite Church	1	3	Thur.
500	Cathcart St	Charleswood Terrace Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
525	Cathcart St	Eastern Star Chalet	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
170	Centennial St	Maydan Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
500	Centennial St	Kenbrook House Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
919	Chancellor Dr	Chancellor Gate	1	3	Mon./Thur.
925	Chancellor Dr	Villa Manor	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
932	Chancellor Dr	Chancellor Square	6	4.5	Mon./Thur.
940 A	Chancellor Dr	Chancellor Estates	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1465	Chevrier Blvd	Martap Investments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
363	Clare Ave	Clare Apartments B	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1377	Clarence Ave	Century Arena	1	4.5	Thur.
105	Clarke St	Highmark Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
115	Clarke St	Ash Haven Arms Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
916	Cloutier Dr	Marina Del Rey Apts.	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
251	Cockburn St N	Lady Corydon Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
272	Cockburn St N	King George Court	1	3	Mon./Thur.
420	Corydon Ave	Masonic Memorial Temple	2	2.25	Tues.
493	Corydon Ave	Lady Adele Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
503	Corydon Ave	Corydon Arms Apts.	1	2.25	Mon.
520	Corydon Ave	CKJS Limited	1	1.5	Mon.
535	Corydon Ave	Lord Hart Manor	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
550	Corydon Ave	Leslie Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
555	Corydon Ave	Glenn Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
565	Corydon Ave	Corydon Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
572	Corydon Ave	Lombardy Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
584	Corydon Ave	Mar-San Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
643	Corydon Ave	Nucci's Gelati	1	1.5	Thur.
651	Corydon Ave	Soup Pierre	1	1.5	Thur.
700	Corydon Ave	Minda Arms Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
716	Corydon Ave	San Rita Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
725	Corydon Ave	Mario Costantini	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
800	Corydon Ave	Dover Place Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
825	Corydon Ave	Chalar Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
830	Corydon Ave	Layton Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
875	Corydon Ave	Trend Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
915	Corydon Ave	Maple Leaf Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
920	Corydon Ave	Henshire Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1011	Corydon Ave	Lord Harrow Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1014	Corydon Ave	Lady Harrow Apts.	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1029	Corydon Ave	Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1088		Wilton Arms Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
1691	Corydon Ave	Renfrew Yards	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1691	Corydon Ave	Renfrew Yards	1	23	Tues./Fri.
1700	Corydon Ave	Bernstein's Deli	1	2.25	Thur.
1755	Corydon Ave	Beaverbrook Park Gardens	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1975	Corydon Ave	Tuxedo Towers Apts.	4	2.25	Tues./Fri.
2060	Corydon Ave	Tuxedo Villa	3	4.5	Tues./Fri.
120	Crescent Dr	Crescent Drive Park	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
781	Crescent Dr	Crescent Drive Golf Course	1	3	Thur.
2	Dalhousie Dr	Townhouses	1	1.5	Thur.
40	Dalhousie Dr	Owl's Nest Ridge Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
45	Dalhousie Dr	Church of Latter Day Saints	1	3	Thur.
58	Dalhousie Dr	Row housing	1	3	Mon./Thur.
99	Dalhousie Dr	Univillage	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
99	Dalhousie Dr	Univillage	3	4.5	Mon./Thur.
150	Dalhousie Dr	Manitoba Housing	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
200	Dalhousie Dr	Lutheran Church of Epiphany	1	3	Mon.
685	Dalhousie Dr	Margaret Grant Pool	1	3	Thur.
349	Daly St N	Justin Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
370	Daly St N	Civic Accommodation	1	4.5	as required
3	Donald St	Riverview Towers "A'"	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
720	Dorchester Ave	Alcade Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
742	Dorchester Ave	Dorchester Apartments	1	2.25	Mon.
785	Dorchester Ave	Panama Courts	2	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1120	Dorchester Ave	Crescentwood Gardens condos.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
215	Edgeland Blvd	Manitoba Housing	4	4.5	Tues./Fri.
253	Edgeland Blvd	Columbus Court Apts.	2	1.5	Tues./Fri.
261	Edgeland Blvd	Townhouses	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
1	Evergreen Pl	Evergreen Place Apartments	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
7	Evergreen Pl	Seven Evergreen Place	3	3	Tues./Fri.
11	Evergreen Pl	Eleven Evergreen Place	3	3	Tues./Fri.
1	Falcon Ridge Dr	Saul & Claribel Simkin Centre	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1	Finch Bay	Cascade Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
170	Fleetwood Rd	Whyte Ridge Community Centre	1	1.5	Thur.
1540	Gamble PI	PCL Constructors Canada Inc.	1	2.25	Thur.
25	Gaylene Pl	Gay-Wel Apartments	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
26	Gaylene PI	Wpg. Regional Housing	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
26	Gaylene PI	Wpg. Regional Housing	2	3	Mon./Thur.
45	Gaylene PI	Gaylene Place Apts.	2	3	Mon./Thur.
99	Gerard St	Condominiums	1	3	Tues./Fri.
383	Gertrude Ave	Montego Manor Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
391	Gertrude Ave	Randolph-Rouge	2	3	Mon./Thur.
620	Gertrude Ave	Condominiums	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1002	Grant Ave	Glengrove Manor Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1015	Grant Ave	St. John Haven Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1025	Grant Ave	Grant Arms	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1030	Grant Ave	Plaza 100 Apartments	2	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1048	Grant Ave	Royal-Grant Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1056	Grant Ave	Wilton Place Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1099	Grant Ave	Hyde Park House Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1119	Grant Ave	Rockwood Plaza Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1139	Grant Ave	Catalina Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1155	Grant Ave	Kent Towers Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1179	Grant Ave	Tiffany Towers Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1205	Grant Ave	Morgan Manor Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1231	Grant Ave	Nathaniel Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1241	Grant Ave	Grant Plaza Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1245	Grant Ave	Gerald Arms Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
1255	Grant Ave	The Americana Apts.	2	3	Mon./Thur.
1281	Grant Ave	General Grant Apartments	2	3	Mon./Thur.
1305	Grant Ave	Cambridge Towers Apts.	2	3	Mon./Thur.
1391	Grant Ave	Singleton's/Strokes of Genius/Diamond Athletics/Bank of Montreal	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1535	Grant Ave	H.M.S. Holdings Co. Ltd.	1	2.25	Tues.
1549	Grant Ave	Prepared Pleasures & Head 2 Toe	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
1780	Grant Ave	Camrose Gardens condos.	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
1822	Grant Ave	Yijiro Japanese Restaurant Ltd.	1	1.5	Tues.
2316	Grant Ave	Canadian Mennonite College	1	3	Tues./Fri.
2325	Grant Ave	Ambulance Station	1	1.5	Tues.
3161	Grant Ave	The Wellington Sr. Apts.	4	2.25	Tues./Fri.
3199	Grant Ave	West Park Manor	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
3201	Grant Ave	Charlesdale Garden Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
3420	Grant Ave	Lions Court Condos.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
3901	Grant Ave	Bramble Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
3901	Grant Ave	Bramble Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
3907	Grant Ave	Heathstone Condos.	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
4314	Grant Ave	Fairmont Woods Condos.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
1	Greyfriars Rd	Killarney Gardens Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
834	Grosvenor Ave	Eugene Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
859	Grosvenor Ave	Ritz Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
620	Guelph St	Guelph Gardens Apts.	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
630	Guelph St	Guelph Gardens Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
183	Harrow St	The Harrow Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
150	Hendon Ave	White Oak Glen Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
170	Hendon Ave	Wpg. Regional Housing	2	3	Tues./Fri.
528	Hudson St	Fort Garry Rotary Villa Apts.	5	2.25	Mon./Thur.
220	Hugo St N	Pasadena Court Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
230	Hugo St N	Brentwood Lodge Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
276	Hugo St N	Convalescent Home of Wpg.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
554	Jessie Ave	Nassau Apartments	1	3	Thur.
766	Jubilee Ave	Bridge Drive In	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
456	Kenaston Blvd	Kenaston Village Apts.	9	4.5	Tues./Fri.
598	Kenaston Blvd	Ponds Townhouses	4	4.5	Tues./Fri.
650	Kenaston Blvd	Denman Place	3	4.5	Tues./Fri.
690	Kenaston Blvd	Boulton Estates	1	3	Tues./Fri.
690	Kenaston Blvd	Boulton Estates	3	3	Tues./Fri.
700	Kenaston Blvd	Kenaston Estates	3	4.5	Tues./Fri.
85	Keslar Rd	Southlands Community Church	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
33	Killarney Ave	Maple Gardens Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
43	Killarney Ave	Manitoba Housing	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
66	Killarney Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
75	Killarney Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
88	Killarney Ave	Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
100	Killarney Ave	Fort Richmond Plaza Apartments	1	4.5	Thur.
110	Killarney Ave	Killarney Gardens Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
198	Kings Dr	Kings Park	1	4.5	Thur.
85	Kirkbridge Dr	Mary Mother of the Church	1	3	Mon.
5	Lake Crest Rd	Garden at Twin Lakes Apts.	4	4.5	Mon./Thur.
20	Lake Crest Rd	Lake Crest Village Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
465	Lanark St	Lanark Garden Apts.	3	3	Mon./Thur.
555	Lanark St	Lanark Towers	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
211	Laxdal Rd	Century Place	2	3	Tues./Fri.
515	Laxdal Rd	Century Heights Apts.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
535	Laxdal Rd	Century Heights Apts.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
150	Lilac St	The Brussels Apartments	1	2.25	Mon.
162	Lilac St	Dorchester Court Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
475	Lindenwood Dr E	Lindenwood Manor	1	6	Mon./Thur.
495	Lindenwood Dr E	Lindenwood Estates	1	3	Mon./Thur.
100	Main St	Civic Accommodation	1	23	as required
28		North West Travellers' Assoc.	1	1.5	Tues.
633	Manchester Blvd N	Wildwood Apts.	1	4.5	Mon.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
18	Mapleridge Ave	Summer Side Place Inc . Apts.	3	4.5	Mon./Thur.
375	Maplewood Ave	Esquire Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
380	Maplewood Ave	Maplewood Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
990	Markham Rd	Markham Place Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
991	Markham Rd	Celebrity Place Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1010	Markham Rd	Apartments	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1324	Markham Rd	Markham Apartments	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
132	Marrington Rd	South Park Estates	2	2.25	Mon./Thur.
115	Mayfair Ave	Forks Gardens	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
124D	Mayfair Ave	Wpg. Regional Housing	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
135	Mayfair Ave	Mayfair Block Apartments	1	2.25	Tues.
145	Mayfair Ave	Oak Manor Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
160	Mayfair Ave	Regina House Native Clan Org.	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
174	Mayfair Ave	The Penguin Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
7	Mayfair Pl	Wpg. Regional Housing	2	3	Tues./Fri.
21	Mayfair Pl	Twenty-One Mayfair Apts.	4	2.25	Tues./Fri.
501	McMillan Ave	Kitchener Court	1	3	Mon./Thur.
507	McMillan Ave	Lormel Apartments	1	2.25	Thur.
508	McMillan Ave	St. Julien Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
535	McMillan Ave	Chatsworth	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
538	McMillan Ave	Westbury Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
566	McMillan Ave	Aetna Manor Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
584	McMillan Ave	MacArthur Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
600	McMillan Ave	Chandelier Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
607	McMillan Ave	Lord Dorset Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
626	McMillan Ave	Clar-el Manor Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
671	McMillan Ave	Crescent Towers	1	3	Mon./Thur.
758	McMillan Ave	Anvers Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
778	McMillan Ave	Banbury Court	1	3	Mon./Thur.
820	McMillan Ave	Regency Arms Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
890	McMillan Ave	McMilan Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
265	Morley Ave	Parkleigh Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
270	Morley Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
635	Mulvey Ave	Mulvey Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
775	Mulvey Ave	Anoka Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
50	Nassau St N	Nassau Manor Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
55	Nassau St N	Fifty Five Nassau	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
64	Nassau St N	Astra Apartments	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
232	Nassau St N	Gospel Mennonite Church	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
260	Nassau St N	Nassau Apartments	3	1.5	Tues./Fri.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
275	Nassau St N	Sun Valley Court	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
655	Nassau St S	Menno Apartments	1	1.5	Mon.
688	Nassau St S	Connie Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
738	Nassau St S	Man. Housing Authority	2	3	Mon./Thur.
500	Nathaniel St	Grant Park Arena	1	4.5	Thur.
10	Newdale Ave	Wpg. Regional Housing	5	4.5	Mon./Thur.
21	Newdale Ave	Apartments	2	3	Mon./Thur.
21	Newdale Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
255	Oak St	St. Andrews United Church	1	3	Tues./Fri.
363	Oakdale Dr	Plymouth Christian Church	1	3	Tues.
403	Oakdale Dr	Oakdale Gardens Townhouses	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
535	Oakdale Dr	Eric Coy Arena	1	3	Fri.
40	Osborne St	Roslyn Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
360	Osborne St	South Osborne Pl. Housing Coop	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
376	Osborne St	Osborne on the Red Apts.	2	1.5	Tues./Fri.
390	Osborne St	Banana Boat	1	1.5	Thur.
400	Osborne St	Riverbend Plaza Sr. Res.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
421	Osborne St	Winnipeg Transit	1	15	Wed.
421	Osborne St	Winnipeg Transit	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
421	Osborne St	Winnipeg Transit	2	4.5	Mon.
421	Osborne St	Winnipeg Transit	1	3	Mon./Thur.
424	Osborne St	Lady Audrey Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
455	Osborne St	Woodward Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
460	Osborne St	Lady Susan Apts.	1	3	Thur.
576	Osborne St	Gay Louis Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
582	Osborne St	Glendale Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
601	Osborne St	Fred Tipping Place	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
601	Osborne St	Fred Tipping Place	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
625	Osborne St	Ft Rouge Leisure Ctre/ Sam Southern Arena	2	4.5	Thur.
696	Osborne St	Vesuvio's Restaurant	1	1.5	Mon.
717	Osborne St	Beresford Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
718	Osborne St	Marigold Restaurant	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
726	Osborne St	Lux Sole	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
760	Osborne St	Driftwood Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
602	Pasadena Ave	Fort Garry EMC Church	1	3	Thur.
85	Peace Rd	Gunnlaugson Spray-On (1986) Ltd.	1	3	Thur.
101	Pembina Hwy	River Osborne Community Club	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
285	Pembina Hwy	Kiwanis Centre of the Deaf	1	3	Tues./Fri.
285	Pembina Hwy	Kiwanis Centre of the Deaf	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
411	Pembina Hwy	Lifesport Ltd.	1	1.5	Thur.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
890	Pembina Hwy	College of Registered Nurses of Manitoba	1	1.5	Thur.
1110	Pembina Hwy	I F Enterprises	1	3	Thur.
1180	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Dental Centre	1	1.5	Thur.
1230	Pembina Hwy	Bri-Mar Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1350	Pembina Hwy	Fort Garry Police Station	1	4.5	Thur.
1360	Pembina Hwy	Fort Garry Library	1	1.5	Thur.
1430	Pembina Hwy	Garry Manor	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1456	Pembina Hwy	Piston Ring Service	1	2.25	Thur.
1462	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Arms Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1472	Pembina Hwy	Fletcher Arms Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1480	Pembina Hwy	Vietnamese Paradise	1	1.5	Mon.
1515	Pembina Hwy	Royce Apartments	1	2.25	Mon.
1521	Pembina Hwy	Landmark Framing/Compare' Pizza	1	1.5	Thur.
1551	Pembina Hwy	Emmanual Korean Church Inc./Fort Garry Child Care	1	2.25	Thur.
1616	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Highway Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1650	Pembina Hwy	Arizona Apartments	1	6	Mon./Thur.
1660	Pembina Hwy	The Ports Condos.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1660	Pembina Hwy	The Ports Condos.	1	2.25	Mon.
1679	Pembina Hwy	Golden Door Nursing Home	2	3	Mon./Thur.
1681	Pembina Hwy	Georgetown Park Apts.	5	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1720	Pembina Hwy	Pembina on the Red Apts.	4	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1750	Pembina Hwy	Armadale Hollows	4	3	Mon./Thur.
1777	Pembina Hwy	Fort Garry Manor	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1785	Pembina Hwy	Fort Garry Manor	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1793	Pembina Hwy	Fort Garry Villa	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1833	Pembina Hwy	Drury Manor Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Fri.
1833	Pembina Hwy	Drury Manor Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Fri.
1855	Pembina Hwy	Southwood Supper Club	1	2.25	Mon.
2080	Pembina Hwy	Southview Plaza	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
2080	Pembina Hwy	Southview Plaza	2	3	Mon./Thur.
2084	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Woods Town Houses	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
2141	Pembina Hwy	Silver View Estates Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2295	Pembina Hwy	Markham Place Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2295	Pembina Hwy	Markham Place Apts.	2	3	Mon./Thur.
2331	Pembina Hwy	Briarwood Apartments	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2339	Pembina Hwy	Manitoba Housing	4	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2393	Pembina Hwy	Rembrandt Gardens Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2724	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Trail Library	1	1.5	Thur.
2810	Pembina Hwy	Beijing Acupuncture Clinic	1	2.25	Thur. (bi-weekly)

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
2900	Pembina Hwy	Richmond Gardens Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
2945	Pembina Hwy	Westminster Court Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
2945	Pembina Hwy	Westminster Court Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
2965	Pembina Hwy	Newdale Apartments	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
3000	Pembina Hwy	Lakeshore Park I Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
3000	Pembina Hwy	Lakeshore Park I Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
3030	Pembina Hwy	Lakeshore Park II Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
3040	Pembina Hwy	Chimney Ridge Condos.	6	4.5	Mon./Thur.
3069	Pembina Hwy	Country Knoll Condos.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
3073	Pembina Hwy	Country Knoll Condos.	4	4.5	Mon./Thur.
3100	Pembina Hwy	Pembina Apartments	4	4.5	Mon./Thur.
3271	Pembina Hwy	Scottsdale South of the Border condos	4	3	Mon./Thur.
3281	Pembina Hwy	Palm Spring South of the Border condos	2	3	Mon./Thur.
3540	Pembina Hwy	St. Norbert Motor Hotel	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
70	Plaza Dr	Sterling Towers Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
70	Plaza Dr	Sterling Towers Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
80	Plaza Dr	Sterling Towers Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
80	Plaza Dr	Sterling Towers Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
90	Plaza Dr	Plaza Drive Village Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
110	Plaza Dr	Plaza Drive Village Apts.	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
800	Point Rd	Fort Garry United Church	1	1.5	Thur.
970	Point Rd	Fort Garry Kiwanis Plaza	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
120	Portsmouth Blvd	The Terraces of Tuxedo condos	6	4.5	Tues./Fri.
125	Portsmouth Blvd	Portsmouth Retirement Residence	1	3	Tues./Fri.
25	Poseidon Bay	Pan Am Pool	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
70	Poseidon Bay	Central Park Lodge	3	4.5	Mon./Thur.
225	Princeton Blvd	Country Lane Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
112	River Ave	Casa Mia Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
131	River Ave	River Gate Apts.	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
134	River Ave	The River Circle	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
145	River Ave	Wpg. Regional Housing	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
150	River Ave	Korean Cdn. Housing Corp.	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
166	River Ave	Stradbrook Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
191	River Ave	Kennedy Professional Centre	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
253	River Ave	Denley Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
277	River Ave	Royal Oak Courts	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
280	River Ave	Moxam Court Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
281	River Ave	Tudor Apartments	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
300	River Ave	Congress Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
351	River Ave	Rosemount Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
375	River Ave	Lonsdale Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
385	River Ave	Civic Accommodation	1	4.5	Fri.
390	River Ave	The Edwin Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
393	River Ave	The Bronx Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
395	River Ave	The Biltmore Apartment	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
415	River Ave	Sisters of St. Mary Convent	1	3	Tues./Fri.
424	River Ave	River Manor	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
433	River Ave	Villa Cabrini Apts.	1	6	Tues./Fri.
444	River Ave	Augustine Church	1	2.25	Mon.
510	River Ave	Holy Rosary Church	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
555	River Ave	Apartments	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
585	River Ave	Wilmot Apartments	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
595	River Ave	River Crest Gardens	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
605	River Ave	Harewood House	7	1	Tues./Fri.
3401	Roblin Blvd	Wpg. Regional Health Authority	1	1.5	Fri.
4025	Roblin Blvd	The Links	1	3	Tues./Fri.
5006	Roblin Blvd	Civic Accommodation	1	3	Fri.
5419	Roblin Blvd	Swedish Canadian Home	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
5445	Roblin Blvd	Vasalund Estates	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
5501	Roblin Blvd	Charleswood Care Centre	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
5995	Roblin Blvd	Beauchemin Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
6003	Roblin Blvd	Royal Cdn. Legion Branch #100	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
6105	Roblin Blvd	Berkley Court Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
280	Rosedale Ave	Rosedale Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
7	Roslyn Rd	Gannon Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
16	Roslyn Rd	Shelldrake Apartments	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
21	Roslyn Rd	Roslyn Road Apartments	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
26	Roslyn Rd	Marquis Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
29	Roslyn Rd	Roslyn on the Red Condos.	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
43	Roslyn Rd	Blair House Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
50	Roslyn Rd	Riverborne Roslyn Place	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
51	Roslyn Rd	Saigon Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
71	Roslyn Rd	Penthouse Towers Apartments	2	3	Tues./Fri.
80	Roslyn Rd	The Rossmore Apartments	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
81	Roslyn Rd	Shorecrest Plaza Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
99	Roslyn Rd	Roslyn Manor	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
100	Roslyn Rd	Blackstone Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
139	Roslyn Rd	London Towers	1	3	Tues./Fri.
166	Roslyn Rd	Apartments	1	3	Tues./Fri.
188	Roslyn Rd	Nassau House Apts.	1	3	Tues./Fri.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
218	Roslyn Rd	4-plex	1	1.5	Tues.
230	Roslyn Rd	Sussex House Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
246	Roslyn Rd	Imperial Place Apts.	2	3	Tues./Fri.
270	Roslyn Rd	Canterbury House Apts.	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
270	Roslyn Rd	Canterbury House Apts.	3	1.5	Tues./Fri.
300	Roslyn Rd	Fountain House Apartments	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
850	Scotland Ave	Scotland House Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
90	Scotswood Dr	Scotswood Court	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
111	Scott St	Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
118	Scott St	Orchid Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
490	Shaftesbury Blvd	Shaftsbury Place Group Home	1	1.5	Tues.
10	Shelmerdine Dr	Westboine Park	5	3	Tues./Fri.
10	Shelmerdine Dr	Westboine Park	3	4.5	Tues./Fri.
666	Silverstone Ave	Richmond Kings Comm. Ctre.	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1	Snow St	Southwood Green Townhouses	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1	Snow St	Southwood Green Townhouses	1	3	Mon./Thur.
400	South Dr	St. John's Ravenscourt	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
33	Southpark Dr	South Park Gardens	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
34	Southpark Dr	Southpark Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
50	Southpark Dr	South Park Plaza Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
53	Southpark Dr	South Park Gardens Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
65	Southpark Dr	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
70	Southpark Dr	Southpark Manor Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
75	Southpark Dr	Pembina Park Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
88	Southpark Dr	Pembina Park Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
368	Southport Blvd	Tuxedo Community Centre	1	2.25	Fri.
10	Sparrow Rd	Parkland Square	4	4.5	Tues./Fri.
50	St Pierre St	St. Norbert Nursing Home	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
80	St Pierre St	Chalet Saint Norbert	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
300	Stafford St	Stafford Dental Group	1	1.5	Mon.
445	Stafford St	Bethel Place	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
641	Stafford St	Stafford Apartments	2	3	Mon./Thur.
650	Stafford St	Owen Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
240	Stradbrook Ave	Riverview Towers "B"	3	2.25	Tues./Fri.
291	Stradbrook Ave	Newport Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
294	Stradbrook Ave	Two Ninety Four Apts.	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
303	Stradbrook Ave	Fontaine Bleau Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
304	Stradbrook Ave	Starlight Plaza Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
310	Stradbrook Ave	Williamsburg Manor Apts.	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
311	Stradbrook Ave	Fontaine Rouge Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
316	Stradbrook Ave	S&B Medical Boarding Home	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
321	Stradbrook Ave	Fontana Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
324	Stradbrook Ave	Riverborne Seniors Place	1	3	Mon.
333	Stradbrook Ave	Strada-Villa Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
370	Stradbrook Ave	The Palliser	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
375	Stradbrook Ave	Laguna Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
395	Stradbrook Ave	Ublivik Inuit Centre	1	3	Mon./Thur.
396	Stradbrook Ave	Van Gogh Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
400	Stradbrook Ave	Ft. Rouge Ecumenical Apts.	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
411	Stradbrook Ave	Lancaster Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
414	Stradbrook Ave	Suffolk Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
415	Stradbrook Ave	Wakefield Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
419	Stradbrook Ave	Harriet Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
430	Stradbrook Ave	Stradborne Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
431	Stradbrook Ave	Lance Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
491	Stradbrook Ave	Eldorado Arms Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
495	Stradbrook Ave	Thorvaldson Care Centre	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
500	Stradbrook Ave	Emerald House Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
515	Stradbrook Ave	St. Luke's Church	1	2.25	Tues.
575	Stradbrook Ave	Stradbrook Gates	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
592	Stradbrook Ave	592-598 Stradbrook Avenue	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
601	Stradbrook Ave	601-615 Stradbrook Avenue	1	3	Tues./Fri.
932	Summerside Ave	Coach House IV Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
954	Summerside Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
65	Swindon Way	Condominiums	10	1.5	Tues./Fri.
75	Swindon Way	Terraces Park Apts.	3	3	Tues./Fri.
85	Swindon Way	Winslow House Condos.	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
88	Swindon Way	Carpathia Housing Co-op	2	1.5	Tues./Fri.
91	Swindon Way	Condominiums	1	3	Tues.
93	Swindon Way	Tuxedo Park Condos.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
97	Swindon Way	Tuxedo Village Apts.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
101	Swindon Way	Tuxedo Village	4	4.5	Tues./Fri.
999	Taylor Ave	Apartments	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1051	Taylor Ave	Plum Gardens Apts.	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1061	Taylor Ave	Taylor Plaza	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1061	Taylor Ave	Taylor Plaza	5	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1305	Taylor Ave	Taylor Towers	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1325	Taylor Ave	Vincent Cambridge Apts.	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1355	Taylor Ave	Shindico Realty Inc.	1	3	Thur.
1540	Taylor Ave	Pre-Con Builders	1	1.5	Thur.

Street No,	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
1600	Taylor Ave	South Bay Condos	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
1700	Taylor Ave	The Evergreen Condos.	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1710	Taylor Ave	Del Prado Manor Apts.	1	6	Mon./Thur.
1740	Taylor Ave	Taylor Heights Manor Apts.	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
130	Tuxedo Ave	Manitoba Housing	2	4.5	Tues./Fri.
160	Tuxedo Ave	Hampton IV Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
180	Tuxedo Ave	Hampton South Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
200	Tuxedo Ave	Tuxedo Condos.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
96	Ulster St	Manitoba Housing	1	3	Mon./Thur.
100	Ulster St	Richmond Village	4	4.5	Mon./Thur.
160	Ulster St	Tudor Village	5	4.5	Mon./Thur.
55	University Cres	Evergreen Gardens Apts.	2	3	Mon./Thur.
77	University Cres	Summerland Apartments	8	1.5	Mon./Thur.
77	University Cres	Summerland Apartments	3	4.5	Mon./Thur.
81	University Cres	Cooperative Housing	2	3	Mon./Thur.
3416	Vialoux Dr	Viaco Village Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
3420	Vialoux Dr	Vialoux Village	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
173	Victor Lewis Dr	Lindenwoods Village condos.	7	4.5	Mon./Thur.
100	Villa Maria Pl	Villa Maria Retreat House	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
526	Walker Ave	Clarence Court	1	3	Thur.
395	Wardlaw Ave	Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
407	Wardlaw Ave	Apartments	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
478	Wardlaw Ave	Amherst Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
525	Wardlaw Ave	Crescent Ft. Rouge United Church	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.
553	Wardlaw Ave	Pullmer Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
571	Wardlaw Ave	Cranbrook Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
626	Wardlaw Ave	Highgate Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
561	Warsaw Ave	Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
573	Warsaw Ave	Neil Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.
879	Warsaw Ave	Woodlawn Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
0	Waverley Blvd	Labarriere Park	1	4.5	Thur.
1200	Waverley St	Waverley Business & Science Center	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1250	Waverley St	South Waverley Business-Science Centre	1	1.5	Mon./Thur.
1539	Waverley St	Public Works/ Water & Waste	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1539		Public Works - Fleet Services	1	4.5	Mon./Thur.
1539	Waverley St	Community Services - Insect Control	1	4.5	Mon.
2445	Waverley St	Islamic Mosque	1	3	Thur.
99	Wellington Cres	Edinburgh House	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
99	Wellington Cres	Edinburgh House	2	2.25	Tues./Fri.
100	Wellington Cres	Wpg. Condo Corporation	1	1.5	Tues./Fri.

Appendix A Page 14 of 14

Street No.	Service Street	Service Name	No. of Bins	Bin Size	Garbage Pickup Days
116	Wellington Cres	Wpg. Condo Corporation	1	1.5	Tues.
141	Wellington Cres	River Parke Condos	1	3	Tues./Fri.
155	Wellington Cres	Sutton Place Apartments	4	0.75	Tues./Fri.
221	Wellington Cres	Halter East Bldg. Apts.	4	1.5	Tues./Fri.
250	Wellington Cres	Wellington Towers	2	1.5	Mon./Thur.
255	Wellington Cres	The Queen Elizabeth II	1	3	Tues./Fri.
264	Wellington Cres	Wellington Apartments	1	3	Mon./Thur.
271	Wellington Cres	Royal Crest Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
277	Wellington Cres	Wellington Arms	4	1.5	Tues./Fri.
323	Wellington Cres	Hampton Green Condos.	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
323	Wellington Cres	Hampton Green Condos.	1	3	Tues./Fri.
330	Wellington Cres	Wellington Gates	1	3	Tues./Fri.
333	Wellington Cres	Hampton House Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
365	Wellington Cres	The Cedars Apartments	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
380	Wellington Cres	380 Wellington Crescent condos	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
260	Wentworth St	Lady Wentworth Apts.	1	3	Mon./Thur.
60	Westgrove Way	Manitoba Housing	4	4.5	Tues./Fri.
857	Wilkes Ave	The Waverley Rosewood Seniors Complex	2	4.5	Mon./Thur.
877	Wilkes Ave	Grant Memorial Baptist Church	1	6	Mon.
885	Wilkes Ave	Lindenholm Place Apts.	2	2.25	Mon./Thur.
895	Wilkes Ave	Linden Lake Terrace	2	1.5	Mon.
909	Wilkes Ave	Sterling House	3	2.25	Mon./Thur.
955	Wilkes Ave	Immanuel Pentecostal Church	1	4.5	Mon.
59	Wilmot PI	Wilmot Park Plaza Apts.	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
96	Wilmot PI	Condominiums	1	1.5	Fri.
360	Wilton St	Shalom Gardens Housing Co-op	1	2.25	Tues./Fri.
619	Wilton St	Apartments	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
2	Windmill Way	Roblin Oaks Townhouses	2	6	Tues./Fri.
2	Windmill Way	Roblin Oaks Townhouses	5	4.5	Tues./Fri.
60	Windmill Way	Condominiums	1	4.5	Tues./Fri.
467	Woodward Ave	Siesta Apartments	1	2.25	Mon./Thur.

APPENDIX B - SOLID WASTE BY-LAW

The Solid Waste By-Law (Consolidation 2002 01 30) is applicable to the Work of the Contract.

The *Solid Waste By-Law* is available in Adobe Acrobat (.pdf) format on the Consolidated By-Laws page at The City of Winnipeg, City Clerks' internet site at the web addresses shown below:

Solid Waste By-Law - http://www.winnipeg.ca/clerks/pdfs/bylaws/1340.76.pdf

APPENDIX C – MAP OF COLLECTION AREA



Mechanical Collection of Solid Waste from Apartments and Small Commercial Establishments in the South West Area of the City of Winnipeg

